MOVE General Questions & Responses

1. Addendum 1 – Deliverable Requirements: is NPR 6000 available for review to describe the Shipping Classes shown here?

Response: NPR 6000.1G, Requirements for Packaging, Handling, and Transportation for Aeronautical and Space Systems, Equipment, and Associated Components, may be reviewed at the following website: 

http://nodis.hq.nasa.gov/displayDir.cfm?Internal_ID=N_PR_6000_001G_&page_name=main

2. I.A.4 – Delivery and Payment Schedules: the “% CV/OV” entries seem to be directing milestone payment values. How does this compare to the reference on page 40 that “commercial interim payments….are authorized”? How are these percentages determined?  Is this indicating, for instance, that NASA has decided to pay 2% of CV for each of 10 years for Maintenance coverage, or 20% of CV total? Doesn’t the Contractor determine such pricing and propose invoice values and timing consistent with the Terms and Conditions?

Response: The sentence at the end of Clause I.A.4 ("commercial interim payments….are authorized”) adds no value and will be deleted.  The Government estimated the cost of the deliverables and developed percentages accordingly.  Offerors are encouraged to submit specific comments or alternative percentages for the Government to consider for the Final RFP.  A milestone payment of 2% of the total contract value would be made for each of the 10 years of Maintenance.  The Contractor will not being requested to propose milestone payments, nor are progress payments authorized.

3. Also on I.A.4, the Option for KSC shows “NSP” for the design checkpoint, presumably meaning the design work required here is not to be a separate charge item. However, Enclosure 1 shows this design work completing in Mar 2008, more than a year before the NLT Delivery 1 at Sept 2009. Why is the design checkpoint so far in advance for this one development item, when there are numerous similar ones throughout the MOVE project? Why should the Contractor perform and demonstrate this development so far in advance and not be reasonable paid for it at the time?

Response: The dates have been modified to provide more time, and to reduce the time between KSC development and delivery. The Master Schedule will reflect the modified dates.

4. Since the pricing for Basic and Options are FFP, what rationale is foreseen by NASA to price maintenance coverage as FFP for ten years into the future from site delivery (15 years total for MOVE)? Page 63 calls out FAR 52.222-43, which addresses labor and fringe rates, but this would only impact a very limited portion of the cost base for maintenance, which is mostly material for equipment repair/replacement. Are some “adjustment factors” to be incorporated into the contract to protect both the vendor and NASA from non-linear fluctuations in costs that cannot be accurately predicted? In addition, technology change will be a clear issue in this area. FFP pricing for all possible scenarios for 15 years maintenance support will require remarkable clairvoyance without an agreed, contractual adjustment vehicle fair to both parties.

Response:  First, FAR 52.222-43 was incorrectly checked and will be deleted in the Final RFP.  Second, the Government does not intend to change the contract type from firm fixed price for the MOVE requirement or for maintenance specifically.  The Government contends that the stable configuration of the system and the schedule range that provides offerors flexibility to establish the schedule and pricing in accordance with their own technical approach enables firm fixed pricing.
5. I.A.8 (c) says an order is “issued” when the Government puts it in the mail, and I.A.9 (d) indicates the vendor only has “3 days after issuance” to send back written notices. Given the typical mail transit time, the latter “3 days” seems incorrect. Same issue applies to I.A.11(e).

Response: Clause I.A.9(d) will be revised to 7 days after issuance.  I.A.11(e) requires acknowledgement within 3 calendar days after receipt of the task order, not 3 days after issuance.
6. I.A.12 indicates very specific delivery times as firm requirements. Since MOVE is not using existing vendor COTS designs, delivery of up to 150 keysets in 90 days is too short using typical delivery cycles for components and circuit card assembly. Suggest 120 days as more realistic. Also, (d) indicates “any IDIQ” order is maximum six months delivery, and considering a possible maximum of $10 million or so per I.A.9, this delivery could also be too short in some situations.

Response: The Government is reviewing the delivery turn-around times in Clause I.A.12(c), which will be changed as follows:

1. All Keysets and Switch Interface Cards

a. 30 day delivery turn-around for orders with a quantity of 1 through 25

b. 120 day delivery turn-around for orders with a quantity of 26 – 125

Clause I.A.9 will be revised to reduce the maximum order to $2 million.
7. I.A.12 (f) indicates that the CO may make unilateral modifications per 52.212-4(c), however this FAR reference indicates any changes require “written agreement of the parties”, clearly not “unilateral”. Which is correct intention for this paragraph?

Response: The last sentence of 52.212-4(c) states, "Incremental funding changes and changes to delivery orders for administrative changes may be made unilaterally by the Contracting Officer."  This last sentence bounds the reference in I.A.12.

8. The note at top of page 46 excludes the Options from the succeeding paragraphs. Why would these paragraphs not apply to the Options as well as the Basic and IDIQ?

Response: Upon exercise of each Option, the Basic Requirement will be augmented by the addition of that Option. This sentence was not intended to exclude exercised Options.  

9. I.A.26 covers program delays caused by Government issues. The first part indicates the Contractor should submit a proposal for FFP increases or delivery adjustments when these occur. Then, there is clear indication that the Contractor is to “continue performance” up to 30 days in these situations “without … corresponding profit adjustment”. Which of these is correct? How would “profit adjustment” apply to FFP if applicable? Also, the end of this paragraph mentions “the 6-month period” for cumulative time impact, with additional mention that the FFP will be adjusted for same (versus 30 days without profit adjustment again?). Is there some other paragraph that describes this “6-month” reference in more detail?

Response: Clause I.A.26 is unclear and will be revised as follows:

“I.A.26
PROGRAM DELAYS

When a Government caused delay occurs, the Contractor shall submit within 30 days of the end of the delay, its proposal, if any, for an increase in the firm fixed price and/or delivery schedule adjustment.  Such proposal shall cite the specific Government caused delay and shall be submitted to the Contracting Officer.  In the event that delivery schedules in this contract are affected by Government caused delays for a period of 30 days or less per incident, the Contractor agrees to continue performance under the contract without a corresponding adjustment to the contract value.  Adjustments to the firm fixed price of the contract will be negotiated for any Government caused delays exceeding 30 days per incident.”

10. I.A.32 mentions enhancements described in Clause I.A.34, however this paragraph only provides a List of Attachments. Where is the Clause for enhancements?

Response: Any enhancements that Offerors propose must be submitted via Attachment F, which will then become part of the contract.  There is no Clause for enhancements.

11. III (c) requests alternative offers for commercial items, but also seems to indicate any such would have to “satisfy the requirements of this solicitation”. With the continuing clear indication in SOW 1.4 for COTS “to the maximum extent possible”, the SOW Glossary definition of “COTS” clearly indicating designs already installed in the field and in SRD 4.1.e that the “system shall be comprised of COTS”, are we to interpret “alternative offers” here to allow deviations to the requirements? Without this, what alternative is to be proposed?

Response:  The Government is seeking Offeror alternatives which may enhance their offering, or alternatives which clearly meet the intent of a requirement, but through an innovative approach that satisfies the requirement in a manner that was not envisioned by the Government in its phrasing of the requirement.  Such alternatives should also be COTS to the maximum extent possible.  If an offeror submits multiple offers, each offer would be evaluated separately.  
12. III.A.2 mentions basic and IDIQ, but not Options, is this incorrect?

Response: Upon exercise of each Option, the Basic Requirement will be augmented by the addition of that Option. The text of this clause was not intended to exclude exercised Options. 
13. III.A.4 (b) (1) limits Past Performance to only 30 pages. This seems limited, given the potential to report on Subcontractors as well, plus allowing for reporting on more than the five projects requested. Suggest this limit be doubled to allow for most complete presentation and evaluation.

Response: The Government will consider increasing the page limitation for Past Performance.

14. Subfactor A, Exhibit 1 requests number of VoIP ports and VoIP ports “per card”. This must presume some specific design approach that is not fully described in the SRD. Is there some expectation here on how “VoIP ports” are to be provided in actual system equipment?

Response: Subfactor A, Exhibit 1 will be modified to refer to the number of VoIP users supported rather than ports as currently stated.
15. Subfactor B discusses overall project schedules, using Enclosure 1, Master Schedule as a reference. What is the definition of the “TBS” for the Target Start and Finish on Enclosure 1?

Response: "TBS" means To Be Supplied. However, an outdated Enclosure 1 was posted with the Draft RFP. A revised Enclosure 1 will provide populated Target Dates and eliminate the "To be Supplied" references.

16. Considerable input has been previously provided to the MOVE team on schedules overall. However, Enclosure 1 still indicates only a five month elapsed time from initial SDR until the Contractor is to provide Prototype Demonstrations (presumably for all Basic equipment). This is less time than the MOVE team has used between the last RFI and the Draft RFP release. Given that the SRD clearly requires considerable custom design work from any available COTS products, how realistic is this interval?

Response: The dates have been modified to provide more time for development.  The Master Schedule will reflect the modified dates.

17. Enclosure 1 provides NET and NLT for Start and Finish. How flexible will the Government be on adjusting individual site installation to allow the Contractor to adequately plan for crew coverage at the many scattered sites? No vendor will have unlimited manpower available to send to the field, so some accommodation on both sides will be needed in this regard. Comments on this would be appreciated.

Response: The NET, NLT, and Target Dates have been modified to provide more time, and to allow more delivery and installation phasing. The Master Schedule will reflect the modified dates.

18. Exhibit 6 is covered in Subfactor C discussion on page 77, requiring specific inputs on all items that will require development. Cost of NRE is required here and Note 2 indicates the cost supplied “will NOT be used for Price Evaluation”. What does this mean? Who pays this NRE?

Response: Note 2 is unclear and will be removed.  The entity that “pays for” the Non-Recurring Engineering (NRE) will be seamless to the Contractor, but, for the record, the Center, which desires the development-needing requirement will pay for the NRE.

19. III.A.5 (3) Price Volume on page 78 discusses completion of Exhibit 7 for FFP on Basic and Options. Second paragraph mentions providing detailed breakdown on labor, etc. How does this apply to FFP submittal on Exhibit 7?

Response: Exhibit 7 simply includes the Firm Fixed Price for the Basic Requirement and each Option.  The Government will need a detailed break-down of each price provided in Exhibit 7.  For the Contractors’ convenience, charts will be provided by element of cost in the Final RFP.  

20. III.A.5 (3) also discussed Attachment C for the IDIQ pricing, and clearly indicates all these submittals would be considered fixed prices. Similar to labor rate discussion above, how does the Government see an accurate and fair derivation of pricing of this magnitude over such an extended period, without some equitable price adjustment factor? Given technology change and cost escalation variations, it is simply not possible to price this far into the future as FFP.

Response: As stated in Question #4 above, the Government contends that the stable configuration of the system enables firm fixed pricing.  Further, should changes to the contract requirements would be an opportunity for an equitable adjustment.
21. Exhibit 8 requests pricing for switch/LSA, keysets and maintenance coverage for each of ten years. How will this be used versus the seemingly fixed “%CV” values in I.A.4?

Response: Exhibit 8 will be used to determine funding sources.  Clause I.A.4 will be used to determine Contractor payment amounts and payment dates.
22. Past Performance requires five contracts within the past three years of similar equipment to MOVE and in excess of $1 million each. While this is understandable, contracts such as these are not that common in recent procurement environments. To support open and complete competition, suggest this value be reduced to half-million dollars and the timeframe increased to five years. Further, we suggest each Contractor attach a simple listing of all customers over the last ten years, with a brief system description and the cognizant current contact name and phone number. For just a few extra pages, this would allow NASA a much broader potential coverage of actual customer experience than just five hand-picked contracts.

Response: The Government will eliminate the contract/subcontract dollar threshold for past performance information.   

23. Evaluation of Options and Evaluation Exclusive of Options, both at IV on page 86 seem contradictory. The first seems to indicate all the Options except KSC will be evaluated by adding the total price for all Options as a sum to the basic requirement, while the second seems to indicate KSC and Dryden SPA Options will be evaluated by only considering the “basic requirement” and “options will not be included”. Please clarify.

Response: The firm fixed price for Options 101-113 will be presented to the Source Selection Authority (SSA) as parts of the evaluated price for MOVE procurement.  The firm fixed prices for Option 114, Dryden SPA, and Option 115, KSC, will not be presented to the SSA.  In other words, the prices for Dryden SPA and KSC will not impact the award decision.

24. In Subfactor B discussion on page 89, evaluation of the offeror’s ability to manage fluctuations in contract workload beyond $10 million is indicated. How was this value determined? This could be a major variation for some offerors and minor for others. Would a percentage variation from some average actual sales value be more meaningful? If actual experience for a potential Small Business Contractor has not exceeded such a value due to stable continuing sales to a loyal customer base, will that cause downgrade in the evaluation factor given? The high value seems counter to the Small Business set-aside in general.

Response: After further review, the Government has decided to delete this portion of the evaluation.  
25. IV.A.3, Price Factor indicates cost/price analysis will be performed using two FAR references. The first, 15.305 (a) (1) refers to 15-403-1(c)(1)(i)(B) instead of the second mentioned here, 15.404-1. Will this reference also be applied to the analysis? And 15.404-1 actually has several analysis options, can you indicate which would be applicable here?

Response: FAR 15.305(a)(1) provides a general overview of the cost or price evaluation portion of proposal evaluation.  The reference to 15.403-1(c)(1)(i)(B) is made in the context of the "limited situations" for which cost analysis may be appropriate.  Contract pricing is covered more fully in FAR15.4, and Proposal Analysis is addressed specifically in FAR 15.404.  Since certified cost or pricing data are not required for MOVE, the most salient element of FAR 15.404-1 is (a)(2):
"(2) Price analysis shall be used when cost or pricing data are not required (see paragraph (b) of this subsection and 15.404-3)."
26. How do the evaluation factor descriptions in IV.A.3 compare to those above from IV? This seems to indicate some Options may be excluded from the evaluation. How will these be determined?

Response: The evaluation factor descriptions in IV.A.3 should be consistent with those in IV.  In order to clarify the Price Evaluation Factor, the final paragraph of Provision IV.A.3 will be revised to replace " the firm fixed price of each Option evaluated at award" with "the firm fixed prices of Options 101 through 113" 

Consistent with Provision IV, the firm fixed prices for Option 114, Dryden SPA, and Option 115, KSC, will not be included in the Price presented to the SSA.  

27. In IV.A.3, what IDIQ prices will be evaluated? Does this point to Attachment C? If so, will all CLIN subtotals be summed for all fifteen years? What impact will the previous discussion items on escalation have on this?

Response:  All IDIQ CLINs will be price evaluated per IV.A.3, using the quantities indicated in the evaluation model in Attachment C, for all 15 years.  The Total IDIQ Price is generated for evaluation purposes only.  The Offeror is to provide pricing for all CLINs for each of the 15 years.  The method by which the Offeror determines it's pricing over time (whether by escalation or any other method) is up to the Offeror.

28. In IV.A.3, since the Government is providing all pricing factors used for Life Cycle Cost (Contractor just supplies power consumption and heat load for each site), what price factor evaluation is foreseen here? The only evaluation on the Contractor in this area is how accurate his supplied data is, which is clearly not a “price factor”, but a technical issue.

Response: The Government is contemplating eliminating the current plan of converting the Total Power Consumption and Total Heat dissipation figures into cost dollars.  The evaluation of life cycle cost considerations in Mission Suitability would remain.  

29. Exhibit 10 (also called Attachment E on some pages) provides a DRAFT Surveillance Plan for MOVE, with notation “For Information Purposes Only” on the cover, and notation that the document will be tailored to fit the Contract. There are numerous references to reviews of various types here. Since all of these “surveillance” efforts will clearly require time from the MOVE Contractor, are we to only provide FFP pricing for the reviews listed in the SOW, and none of the potential “extra” reviews noted in this Plan? Why in a “COTS environment” as MOVE is supposed to represent should such extensive “surveillance” be necessary in any event?

Response:  The Surveillance Plan describes the Government’s approach for providing surveillance of the MOVE Contract and compliance with its terms.  It is in the RFP for informational purposes.  The Draft Surveillance Plan will be reconciled with the requirements in order to be consistent.  For pricing purposes, the Offeror should consider the Reviews and other activities as described in the SOW.  The level of surveillance described in the Surveillance Plan is driven by the amount of development effort required under MOVE, and the aggressive production and delivery of the developed items.

30.  Clause I.A.12: Does NASA expect to limit the number of closely placed orders with the 10 day turn-around time, i.e., what inventory must be maintained to support this requirement?

Response: See Question #6 above.  The Government is working on language to limit the number of closely placed quick turn-around orders.  The Government is not dictating a level of inventory to be maintained.  
31. III.A.8 NPR 8715.3 Appendix H (Sample Safety and Health Plan), 1.2 Requirement: “Discuss status of safety program using the Performance Evaluation Profile (PEP) as safety performance criteria. Describe the contractor's approach (including milestone schedule) to achieve and maintain level 5 of the PEP in all areas (see contents of PEP).” Question: Where can information on the PEP be found?

Response: According to the GSFC Safety office: "The reference in Appendix H for the PEP is an old requirement that we do not need included [the Contractor's] Safety and Health Plan.  The PEP survey was not intended for Contractor participation and should not have been made a part of that Appendix."
32. III.A.8 NPR 8715.3 Appendix H (Sample Safety and Health Plan), 1.9 and others Requirement: release of records “in accordance with the Voluntary Protection Program criteria of OSHA as implemented in [local Center's] Requirements Handbook for Safety, Health, and Environmental Protection, as revised.” (1.9) Question: Do Safety plans, practices and criteria vary among Centers? Or, are we to follow the procedures/documentation of only one Center? GSFC?

Response: NPR 8715.3 is a NASA-wide standard.   Safety practices may vary among Centers, which will have to be considered when performing work on-site.


33. Section I.A.12 specifies 10 day delivery for keyset quantities of 1-25 and port card quantities of 1-10.  To comply with this  will require an inventory of all nine different types of keysets (A, B, C, three desktop D package options plus two other D styles and E) for a total quantity of 225; along with four different types of port cards (local-remote-VoIP-T1), for a total quantity of 100.  This “off-the-shelf” inventory requirement could easily have a dollar range of value in the high six-figures, waiting for a NASA Order to be issued.  It appears it might be in the best interests of the Government to establish a separate CLIN and treat this requirement as a GFE residual inventory account with established minimum and maximum (Min/Max) levels.  As the inventory is used through the issuance of Task Orders, it could be replenished with an additional Task Order.  Depending on requirements and inventory utilization, it might be necessary to adjust the Min/Max inventory levels to accommodate the actual usage from time-to-time.  Please advise how the Government intends to treat this “off-the-shelf” inventory into a resulting Contract Schedule?  

 

Response: See Question # 6 above.


34.  On page 73 of the Solicitation, there are apparent conflicts on how alternate terms and conditions will be considered.  About a third down the page, there is a clear statement that "the Government does not intend to accept proposals with alternate terms and conditions".  However, in the Deviations/Exceptions (Offer Volume) section, it requests "specific exceptions to the terms, conditions" be provided.  Then at the bottom of the page, there is a caution that exceptions or new terms, conditions "may result in a determination of proposal unacceptability".  Please clarify what is the real intent in this area.

Response: Clause 52.212-1 (e) states: "Offerors are encouraged to submit multiple offers presenting alternative terms and conditions or commercial items for satisfying the requirements of this solicitation. Each offer submitted will be evaluated separately."  As such, the sentence "the Government does not intend to accept proposals with alternate terms and conditions" will be deleted.  However, the caution stands that exceptions or new terms and conditions may result in a determination of proposal acceptability.
35. There is some uncertainty on exactly how pricing will be evaluated for the MOVE contract.  For instance, Solicitation paragraph IV. on page 86 provides two specific paragraphs, the first, Evaluation of Options, indicating an award evaluation for total price of the Basic and all options except KSC and DSPA. The next paragraph, Evaluation Exclusive Of Options, indicates for KSC and DSPA, the award evaluation will be "by including only the price for the basic requirement; i.e., options will not be included in the price evaluation". Then in IV.A.3 on page 91, the indication is the evaluation will be on the FFP for the Basic Requirement, plus the FFP for those options evaluated at award. At the end of IV.A.3, it says "the sum of the Basic Requirement FFP, the FFP for each Option evaluated at award, Total IDIQ price and Life Cycle Cost (as adjusted) will be presented to the Source Selection Authority", which sounds like just a single dollar figure ("the sum of") without any breakdown into Basic, Options, IDIQ or Life Cycle. Please clarify how these all compare and describe exactly what number(s) will be used for price factor evaluation and presented for final selection.

Response: The sum of the Basic Requirement firm fixed price, the firm fixed prices of options 101 – 113, and Total IDIQ price, will be presented to the Source Selection Authority. This one number will be used by the SSA to make his best value decision.  Appropriate back-up information will also be provided to the SSA during the SSA briefing.


36. I.A.28 Limitation of Funds (Fixed- Price Contract) (1852.232-77) (MAR 1989):  The language of 1832.705-270 (NASA clauses for limitation of cost or funds) directs the contracting office to insert the clause at 1852.232-77, Limitation of Funds (Fixed Price Contract), in solidifications and contracts for fixed price incrementally funded research and development.

As the MOVE solicitation is based on a “Hybrid Commercial Firm Fixed Price contract, including a Basic Requirement portion and an Indefinite Delivery Indefinite Quantity (IDIQ) as well as fifteen site Options”, the Limitation of Funds clause is, therefore, not applicable.

To incorporate the Limitation of Funds clause at 1852.232.77 places undue financial risk on small business firms and will also impair or restrict negotiation of favorable terms for Line of Credit instruments with financial institutions.

The MOVE solicitation is not a research and development requirement. It is respectfully requested clause 1852.232-77 be removed from the solicitation and any resultant contract.

Response: The Goddard Procurement Officer has approved the use of 1852.232-77 for this procurement.  Funds in excess of milestone payment amounts in advance of the payment dates will be allotted to the contract.  The Government has established milestone payments, in lieu of payment after system delivery, to reduce risk on the successful offeror.


37. I.A.4 DELIVERY AND PAYMENT SCHEDULES:  The solicitation has a Delivery and Payment Schedule at I.A.4, however, the solicitation does not provide for a Payment Clause. It is suggested the payment clause at 52.232-30, Installment Payments for Commercial Items, be incorporated into the solicitation/contract provisions. Please advise.

Response: Payment is covered in Clause 52.212-4, CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS--COMMERCIAL ITEMS.  An additional clause is not required.  


38. In looking over the Compliance Matrix this morning, I have a clarification to request on how this should be filled out.  In the Subfactor A instructions on Solicitation page 75, it is requested to provide considerable descriptive inputs, especially where a requirement is judged as "CM" or "NC".  However, the actual Matrix form itself has very limited space for such details, just the columns for C-CM-NC.  Where should these inputs be entered?  If we put "details" directly into the columns, things are going to get difficult to read, since there is such limited room.  Also, is the Compliance Matrix excluded from the 160 page limit for Mission Suitability?

Response: These inputs would be addressed in Mission Suitability proposal.  The Compliance Matrix itself will be excluded from the page count, but the additional input text will count against the 160 page limit.


39. We note that T&C clause 23 for the Buy American Act is not checked here.  Is that an oversight, since it would definitely seem applicable to such a large program?

Response: Yes. The Final RFP will include Item 23 for the Buy American Act.


 

40. In most references, this contract is referred to as an "RFP", yet box 14 on form 1449 and a reference in III.A.5 on page 72 calls this an "RFO".  Please clarify if these are different in some way.

Response: Requests for Offers (RFO) are issued for commercial items, but there is no difference between RFPs and RFOs other than a semantic one.  Further, "offer" and "proposal" are synonymous.

